
CABINET
AGENDA

Wednesday, 11 November 2020

remotely via Zoom: 
https://www.youtube.com/user/northamptonbctv

At 6:00 pm

Members of the Cabinet:

Councillor: Jonathan Nunn (Leader of the Council)

Councillor: Phil Larratt (Deputy Leader)

Councillors: Mike Hallam, Tim Hadland, Stephen Hibbert, Brandon Eldred, Anna King 
and James Hill. 

Chief Executive George Candler

If you have any enquiries about this agenda please contact 
democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk or 01604 837722 

mailto:democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk


PORTFOLIOS OF CABINET MEMBERS

CABINET MEMBER TITLE

Councillor J Nunn Leader

Councillor P Larratt Deputy Leader
 

Councillor M Hallam Environment

Councillor B Eldred Finance

Councillor T Hadland Regeneration and Enterprise 

Councillor S Hibbert Housing and Wellbeing

Councillor A King Community Engagement and Safety

Councillor J Hill Planning

SPEAKING AT CABINET MEETINGS

PLEASE BE AWARE THAT THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD REMOTELY – SEE BELOW FOR DETAILS OF PUBLIC 
SPEAKER REGISTRATION/HOW TO VIEW THE MEETING

Persons (other than Members) wishing to address Cabinet must register their intention to do so by 12 noon on the day of 
the meeting and may speak on any item on that meeting’s agenda.

Registration can be by:

Telephone: (01604) 837722
(Fax 01604 837057)

In writing: Democratic and Member Services Manager
The Guildhall, St Giles Square, Northampton NN1 1DE
For the attention of the Democratic Services Officer

By e-mail to democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk

Once registered to speak, an invitation will be sent to join the Zoom video conferencing webinar for this meeting.

Only thirty minutes in total will be allowed for addresses, so that if speakers each take three minutes no more than ten 
speakers will be heard.  Each speaker will be allowed to speak for a maximum of three minutes at each meeting.  Speakers 
will normally be heard in the order in which they registered to speak.  However, the Chair of Cabinet may decide to depart 
from that order in the interest of hearing a greater diversity of views on an item, or hearing views on a greater number of 
items.  The Chair of Cabinet may also decide to allow a greater number of addresses and a greater time slot subject still to 
the maximum three minutes per address for such addresses for items of special public interest.

Members who wish to address Cabinet shall notify the Chair prior to the commencement of the meeting and may speak on 
any item on that meeting’s agenda.  A maximum of thirty minutes in total will be allowed for addresses by Members unless 
the Chair exercises discretion to allow longer.  The time these addresses take will not count towards the thirty minute period 
referred to above so as to prejudice any other persons who have registered their wish to speak.

***Remote Meeting Access for Participants***
 Members of the public should register to speak by email (democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk) or telephone 

(01604 837722) by 12pm on the day of the meeting.
 An invitation will be sent to Members and registered Public Speakers for the meeting via Zoom Video Conferencing 

Webinar.

***Remote Public Access***
 The meeting will be available to view here: https://www.youtube.com/user/northamptonbctv 

mailto:democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/user/northamptonbctv


KEY DECISIONS
  denotes the issue is a ‘Key’ decision: 

 Any decision in relation to the Executive function* which results in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the 
making of saving which are significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 
decision relates. For these purpose the minimum financial threshold will be £250,000;  

 Where decisions are not likely to involve significant expenditure or savings but nevertheless are likely to be significant 
in terms of their effects on communities in two or more wards or electoral divisions; and

 For the purpose of interpretation a decision, which is ancillary or incidental to a Key decision, which had been 
previously taken by or on behalf of the Council shall not of itself be further deemed to be significant for the purpose of 
the definition.



NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held:
in remotely via Zoom: https://www.youtube.com/user/northamptonbctv

on Wednesday, 11 November 2020
at 6:00 pm.

George Candler
Chief Executive 

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES  

2. MINUTES  

3. INTENTION TO HOLD PART OF THE MEETING IN PRIVATE IF NECESSARY  

4. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES  

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

6. ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES  

7. FINANCE MONITORING TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2020  

8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS  
THE CHAIR TO MOVE:
“THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM THE REMAINDER OF THE 
MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT THERE IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO 
THEM OF SUCH CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY 
SECTION 100(1) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS LISTED AGAINST 
SUCH ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH 
OF SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.” 



1
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 14 October 2020

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

Wednesday, 14 October 2020

PRESENT: Councillor Nunn (Chair); Councillor Larratt (Deputy Chair); Councillors 
Eldred, Hadland, Hallam, J Hill, Hibbert and King

APOLOGIES:  

1. APOLOGIES
There were no apologies for absence. 

2. MINUTES
The minutes of the meetings held on 9th September 2020 and 23rd September 2020 were 
agreed and signed by the Chair. 

4. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES
There were none. 

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Anna King declared an interest in Item 8 (Capital Update for Leisure) as a 
Director of Northampton Leisure Trust and left the meeting for the duration of this item. 

6. ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES
There were no issues arising from Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

7. FURTHER UPDATES TO THE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME
Councillor Hill as the relevant Cabinet Member submitted his report outlining further updates 
to the Local Development Scheme (LDS), which was the project management scheme for 
the Local Plan Part 2.  The update was required for two reasons.  Firstly, the Round 2 
consultation period had been extended for two weeks to allow time for organisations to sign 
off responses during the holiday period (3.2.2).  Secondly, the introduction of new Use Class 
E from 1 September 2020 had impacted the wording of policies in the emerging Local Plan 
and time had been needed to address these (3.2.3).

The revised timings for submission of the Local Plan Part 2 (expected to be 
January/February 2021) were set out in Appendix 1.

RESOLVED:

Cabinet:

2.1 Approved the new Northampton Borough Local Development Scheme and brought it 
into immediate effect.

 

8. CAPITAL UPDATE FOR LEISURE - FIXED PLANT AND MACHINERY RENEWAL 
FOR DANES CAMP, MOUNTS BATHS AND LINGS FORUM

Having declared an interest as a Director of Northampton Leisure Trust, Councillor Anna 
King left the meeting for the duration of this item.

1

Agenda Item 2



2
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 14 October 2020

Councillor Hadland as the relevant Cabinet Member submitted his report.  Cabinet had 
approved a budget in May 2020 to complete urgent repairs to leisure centres.  The current 
report outlined the detail.  Repairs were being scheduled for minimum disruption and a 
contractor (CJR) had been appointed to co-ordinate the works.  In view of the anticipated 
limited life of Lings Forum, a payback period for repairs of no more than 5 years had been 
set.  The first tender process would focus on replacement of the failed Mounts Baths boilers, 
allowing the hired-in boilers to be removed.

RESOLVED:

Cabinet:

2.1 Delegated authority to the Acting Director of Economy and Assets, in consultation 
with the Borough Secretary, Chief Finance Officer and Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration and Enterprise to appoint the contractors for the work to the fixed plant, 
machinery and associated building elements of Danes Camp, Mounts Baths and 
Lings Forum following the completion of the tender processes.

2.2 Approved a legal budget of up to a maximum of £25,000 if deemed necessary by the 
Acting Director of Economy and Assets in consultation with and the approval of the 
Borough Secretary to procure external legal expertise in construction in connection 
with the works proposed herein to the Leisure Centres.

 

The meeting concluded at 6:10 pm

2



CABINET REPORT

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC

Cabinet Meeting Date:

Key Decision:

Within Policy:

Policy Document:

Directorate:

Accountable Cabinet Member: 

Ward(s)

11 November 2020

YES

YES

NO

Management Board

Cllr B Eldred

N/A

1 Purpose

To update Cabinet on the latest financial monitoring reports including:

 Revenue – any significant issues requiring action and details of the actions being taken.

 Budget risks, including any unachievable savings.

 Budget changes and corrections

 Capital – progress on key projects

 Capital appraisals and variations requiring approval or approved under delegation.

Report Title Finance monitoring to 30 September 2020

Appendices:
1

3

Agenda Item 7



2 Recommendations

2.1 That Cabinet notes the contents of the report and notes that future reports will set out 
the actions being taken by Corporate Management Board (CMB) to address issues 
arising.

2.2 That Cabinet note the financial impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on the general fund 
for the financial year 2020/21 as set out at appendix 1. 

2.3 That Cabinet note the amendments to the general fund capital programme as set out at 
paragraph 3.6.1.

2.4 Cabinet approves the use of HRA funds to finance the total development of Belgrave 
House, if the opportunity arises, as set out at paragraphs 3.7.3 and 3.7.4.

2.5 Cabinet approves the use of £10M of HRA funds, as approved by Council, to deliver the 
next tranche of ‘street property’ acquisitions, as set out in paragraph 3.7.5.

2.6 Cabinet notes the Chief Finance Officer will use existing ‘emergency powers to facilitate 
the virement of funds/budget from the Government Grants received to the Service 
Budgets as appropriate and available as set out in 3.2.4

3 Issues and choices

3.1 Report background

3.1.1 This report is the third financial monitoring report of 2020/21 and reports the forecast 
position as at the end of September 2020, period 6 of the financial year.

3.2 Impact of Covid-19 on 2020/21 budgets

3.2.1 As previously reported to Cabinet, the COVID-19 pandemic will have a significant impact 
on the Council’s finances in 2020/21. Appendix 1 provides an update to some of the 
specific financial issues resulting from the pandemic, including further details on specific 
COVID-19 pressures and grants.

3.2.2 The Council had previously received three tranches of “COVID-19 emergency grant” 
funding from central government, coming to a total of £2.797m. In October a fourth 
tranche of this grant was received worth an additional £1.226m. For the purposes of this 
report, this grant funding has not been allocated to specific pressures in the service 
areas. This means that all pressures are shown in the service areas where they fall. The 
grant funding is then shown as a separate item within the CFO area, so the bottom line 
position does include this grant funding. The expectation is that once the allocation of 
this grant funding is agreed, this will be allocated across the specific service pressures. 
It is assumed that any surplus amount of this grant will be required for further pressures 
emerging through the remainder of this financial year, or will otherwise will be moved to 
reserves to support COVID pressures in the next financial year.

3.2.3 There is also an additional Sales, Fees and Charges (SFC) grant being made available 
from central government to support local authorities for lost income as a result of COVID-
19. Specific losses as a result of COVD-19, over and above the first 5% of planned 

4



income from sales, fees and charges, will be compensated for at a rate of 75p in every 
pound. Work has been undertaken to calculate and appropriately evidence lost income 
that meets the criteria of this grant, so that official claims can be submitted. The total of 
this estimated grant income in this report is £2.450m (with details of how this is split in 
the specific Head of Service areas below).

3.2.4 Cabinet are asked to note that the Chief Finance Officer will use existing emergency 
powers to enable virements from central funds (where Government Grants are received) 
to the appropriate Service Budgets e.g. where grant is received in respect of Sales, Fees 
and Charges and unringfenced grant required to balance budgets and fund approved 
cost pressures. 

3.3 Key financial indicators

 Variation from budget

Budget area General 
fund

Housing 
Revenue 
Accounts 

(HRA)
 £m £m
Controllable service budgets -0.014 0.146
Debt financing and corporate budgets 0.014 0.000
Total 0.000 0.146

3.4 General fund revenue budget

3.4.1 The overall general fund revenue budget is currently forecasting a net nil variance for 
the year. Within this there are a number of variances and these are set out below:

3.4.2 The Economy, Assets and Culture service is currently forecasting a £1.535m 
overspend. This overspend is predominantly associated with losses of income as a 
result of the COVID-19 pandemic. The most significant of these is a forecast loss of car 
park income of £1.461m. This forecast is based on no income for first three months of 
the year and a now 55% reduction in number of visitors for the remainder of the year. 
Please note that included in this forecast is an estimated grant income of £1.953m to 
compensate NBC for lost income as a result of COVID-19.

There is also a loss of income due to closure of the market and reduced number of 
traders following  re-opening (£0.056m), and smaller losses of income in relation to 
events, CCTV, the Bus Station and the Guildhall (£0.044m). These forecasts include a 
total estimated grant income of £0.147m to compensate NBC for lost income as a result 
of COVID-19.

Other income losses relate to rental income in relation to business closures and other 
vacant properties (£0.309m). This is outside the scope of the grant so no losses can be 
reclaimed against this loss.

These pressures are partially offset by savings on staffing budgets across the service 
and various other savings identified totalling £0.471m.

5



3.4.3 The Housing and Wellbeing service is forecasting an overspend position of £0.946m 
for the year. Demand for temporary accommodation has resulted in a forecast pressure 
of £0.325m and a corresponding pressure of £0.150m due to an increase in bad debt 
relating to temporary accommodation. This forecast also now includes the costs relating 
to the provision of accommodation for Rough Sleepers as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic of £0.308m. There is pressure in the Private Sector Housing service due to a 
reduction in civil penalties, licences and disabled facilities grant administration income 
of £0.166m as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic (including some forecast government 
grant due to compensate for lost income of £0.112m).

3.4.4 The Planning service are forecasting a £0.259m overspend position. This is associated 
with an anticipated reduction in land charges income (£0.024m) and planning income 
(£0.108m) as a result of COVID-19 disrupting normal business. These forecasts include 
an estimated grant income of £0.022m to compensate for losses in land charges income 
and £0.164m to compensate for losses in planning income. In addition, there is also a 
£0.115m pressure in the Planning Policy area due to the risk on an Article 4 policy and 
the saving option regarding joint working on Planning policy now not being achievable 
(£0.035m).

3.4.5 The Chief Finance Officer service is reporting an underspend of £2.492m. However, 
this is due to the unbudgeted £3.109m of funding received from Central Government for 
COVID-19 related costs pressures. This funding is currently centralised but will be 
allocated out across the services to cover some of the impacts of COVID-19.

Excluding this grant income, this area has a pressure of £0.617m. There are pressures 
of £0.300m in relation to potential additional external audit costs; £0.111m in relation to 
the Benefits area mainly from overpayment recovery reductions; £0.155m in relation to 
Business Rates scheme changes caused by the COVID-19 policy updates and £0.075m 
in relation to additional IT working from home costs.

3.4.6 The Customers and Communities area is reporting an underspend of £0.362m. This 
includes an underspend of £0.564m in the Environmental Services area, largely due to 
the uptake of the chargeable green waste project exceeding its target as well as pension 
contribution costs being lower than budgeted, which has mitigated the additional costs 
of providing the waste service through this difficult period. This is partially offset by costs 
coming out of the recycling risk share pay mechanism. These higher costs are caused 
by prices for recyclable material continuing to fall creating a pressure of £0.060m. There 
is also a £0.059m pressure being forecast for legal costs associated with the pensions 
dispute on the old environmental services contract.

Other pressures are in the Licensing area (£0.033m); the Commercial Services area 
(£0.032m); and the Environmental Protection area (£0.016m) which are mainly due to 
losses of income as a result of COVID-19 disrupting normal business. Included in the 
licencing forecast is an estimated grant income of £0.046m to compensate NBC for lost 
income. There is also a pressure in the Leisure Contract area caused by a delay in 
signing a new lease agreement with Northampton Leisure Trust resulting in a loss of 
budgeted income (£0.050m); and the Museums area due to redundancy costs and loss 
of income from the Museums not being able to open during COVID-19 (£0.070m).

3.4.7 There is a pressure of £0.114m being reported in the Chief Executive area. This is as 
a result of additional grants being distributed as a result of COVID-19.

6



3.4.8 The Borough Secretary area is reporting an underspend of £0.014m mainly as a result 
of staffing underspends.

3.4.9 There is a forecast overspend of £0.014m against the Corporate budget. This includes 
a pressure of £0.259m on the debt financing budget as a result of a reduction in interest 
rate yields, but this is offset by this year’s MRP being £0.246m less than planned in the 
budget.

3.4.10 Corporate Management Board (CMB) continue to seek options and actions to manage 
and mitigate the impact of the risk of an overspend in 2020/21, without impacting on 
services or the Council’s ability to deliver its obligations to businesses and the 
community during the Covid Pandemic.

3.5 HRA revenue budget

3.5.1 The Housing Revenue Account is currently forecasting a £0.146m pressure. This 
includes £0.436m pressure on rental income primarily due to a combination of pre-
COVID-19 budget assessment of new build units coming on to the rental stream and the 
subsequent re-phasing of new build schemes following the COVID-19 pandemic. It is 
offset by forecast savings on expenditure budgets of £0.290m

3.6 General fund capital programme

3.6.1 The approved General Fund Capital Programme is currently forecast to spend up to the 
latest budget of £17.1m. There have been a number of in-year changes since the 
previous Cabinet Report and these are detailed in the table below.

Reference Scheme Title £m Comments
BA280 Acquisition of 41-45 

Abington St.
1.700 The acquisition of 41-45 

Abington Street, known as 
the former M&S retail unit, 
to enable the regeneration 
of a key site within 
Northampton Town centre.

BA281 Racecourse Enhancements 
and Restoration of 
Basketball / Netball pitches

0.139 Installation of new 
floodlights, surface and line 
marking, basketball and 
netball hoops – available for 
all park users and to help 
set up local teams.  This 
scheme has transferred in 
from the Development Pool 
and is 50% match funded 
by Sport England.

BA282 Replacement of Guildhall 
Boilers

0.350 Work includes boiler 
replacement, pump, 
pipework and flue 
alterations, control panel 

7



replacement and water 
conditioning system works.  
This scheme has 
transferred in from the 
Development Pool.

3.6.2 It is expected that the current COVID-19 situation will significantly impact the programme 
going forwards. In particular through:

• Availability of contractors and delays to start times
• Increased cost of materials
• Possible impact of supply chain issues for materials
• Extended periods of construction due to social distancing which could slow 

down building work and fitting out of premises.

The impact is currently unknown but will be continually assessed by services and the 
Finance Team with regular reports back to Cabinet and CMB on progress which will 
highlight any significant issues identified.

3.6.3 There are a further £58.8m of schemes in the Development Pool awaiting approval.  Any 
further additions to the capital programme, including any strategic property purchases, 
will be subject to the development of a robust business case.  In line with the Financial 
Regulations, any proposed additions to the programme greater than £0.25m and / or 
requiring additional funding from council resources, will be brought to Cabinet for 
approval.

3.7 HRA capital programme

3.7.1 The  HRA capital programme for 2020/21 totals £69.117m, of which £49.409m is to be 
managed on behalf of the Council by Northampton Partnership Homes (NPH) through a 
programme of planned investment and new build development.

3.7.2 Some of the New Build programme is experiencing slippage during 20/21, and this is 
currently anticipated to be in the region of £1.7m. Neighbourhood Programmes are 
currently anticipating £6m slippage due to COVID-19, however the contractor is 
committed to accelerating the programme where possible during 20/21. Landscaping 
works are accelerating and progressing well resulting in budget being brought forward 
from the 2020/21 programme of £1m.

3.7.3 Cabinet received a report on 20 May in respect of Belgrave House (to be known as ‘The 
Clock House’) and the redevelopment of the block to provide much needed ‘key worker’ 
accommodation. Initially part of that business case (70%) was to be funded by an L&G 
Finance Lease. There is now an option to fully fund the scheme through HRA (Housing 
Revenue Account) funding, with a residual smaller lease element. Given the low rates 
of Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) available for HRA schemes, this would see a 
reduction in through life costs and offer a further contingency to the overall cost of the 
scheme.

3.7.4 As this is a change to the funding methodology detailed in the original Cabinet Report, 
Cabinet are being asked to note and approve the use of HRA funds, if the opportunity 
to replace the L&G Finance Lease arises. This does not impact on the overall cost of 

8



the scheme. Council provide additional overarching budget and borrowing approval on 
14 September 2020 of £50m, from which this will be drawn.

3.7.5 Cabinet considered in the Housing Acquisitions Options paper on 19 August 2020, which 
provided feedback on the initial pilot scheme. The recommendations sought and were 
approved an extension to the scheme. The proposal is to seek to acquire an additional 
100 plus ready to use homes. Cabinet are being asked to approve an allocation of £10M 
to fund a second tranche of acquisitions which would enable the acquisition of 50-70 
homes dependent on the range available and market price. 

3.7.6 Once this tranche is fully in process a further review of price, need and lessons learned 
will be provided to Cabinet along with an expected further request for funding approval.

3.8 Choices (options)

3.8.1 Cabinet is asked to note the reported financial position and agree the recommendations 
at 2.1 to 2.6. There are no alternative options in respect of recommendations 2.1 to 2.4 
and 2.6, other than not to agree the recommendations. In respect of Recommendation 
2.5, Cabinet may choose to increase or decrease the budget sought for Tranche Two of 
the acquisitions in addition to not approving the recommendation.

4 Implications (including financial)

4.1 Policy

4.1.1 The Council agreed a balanced budget for the capital programme and revenue budgets 
for both the general fund and the HRA in February 2020. Delivery of the budget is 
monitored through the budget monitoring framework.

4.1.2 The Council approved an increase to the HRA budget and associated borrowing on 14 
September 2020.

4.2 Resources and risk

4.2.1 This report informs the Cabinet of the forecast outturn positions for capital and revenue, 
for both the general fund and HRA, as at the end of September 2020.  It also highlights 
the key risks identified to date in delivering those budgets.

4.2.2 All schemes included in the capital programme, or put forward for approval, are fully 
funded, either through borrowing, internal resources or external funding arrangements.

4.3 Legal

4.3.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

4.4 Equality and health

9



4.4.1 There are no direct equalities and health implications arising from this report.

4.5 Consultees (internal and external)

4.5.1 Heads of Service, budget managers, Corporate Management Board (CMB) and Portfolio 
Holders are consulted as part of the budget monitoring process on a monthly basis.

4.6 How the proposals deliver priority outcomes

4.6.1 Regular financial monitoring is a key control mechanism and contributes directly to the 
priorities of sustaining “effective and prudent financial management” and being “an agile, 
transparent organisation with good governance”.

4.7 Environmental Implications

4.7.1   There are no direct environmental implications arising from this report.

4.8 Other Implications

4.8.1   There are no other implications arising from this report

5.  Background papers

5.1 Cabinet and Council budget and capital programme reports February 2020.

5.2 Council Report HRA Budget - 14 September 2020

5.3 Cabinet Report – Housing Acquisitions Options – 19 August 2020

Stuart McGregor, 

Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) 

10



Appendix 1 – COVID-19 Costs, Pressures and Grants

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL – COVID-19 COSTS, PRESSURES AND GRANTS

The following provides an update to information previously reported to Cabinet and directly 
relates to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. It is broadly split into three sections:

 Cost (and income) pressures
 Grant funding

COST PRESSURES

1. HOUSING

The Housing Service is reporting an overall forecast overspend for 2020/21 and this is partially 
as a result of pressures related to COVID-19.

Some pressures can be directly linked to the pandemic. For example, the service is forecasting 
a £0.308m overspend as a result of finding accommodation for rough sleepers at the direction 
of the government as a direct response to the pandemic. These costs were in the form of block 
booked hotel rooms and halls of residence to provide this accommodation. These costs are 
partially offset by housing benefit, and specific grants, but there is still a net overall cost to the 
Council of providing this.

For other pressures such as temporary accommodation, it is harder to know exactly what 
proportion of the overspend being forecast by the service is directly attributable to COVID-19. 
Whilst every effort is being made to prevent homelessness and reduce costs, there is a risk that 
the number of households becoming homeless will increase due to the impact of COVID-19 on 
job losses, unemployment, indebtedness and people’s ability to meet their housing costs. The 
problem could be compounded now that the ban on evictions expired on 20 September 2020. 
The Housing Advice & Options Team’s procedures and processes have been updated, and a 
new Tenancy Sustainment Fund established, in preparation for this.

In addition there has been a loss of income from civil penalties in the Housing area as a result 
of reduced activity as a result of COVID-19. This loss is estimated to be in the region of £0.170m. 
As discussed in the grant section later in this appendix, grant can be claimed against this loss, 
but the loss is only partially recoverable.

2. ECONOMY ASSETS & CULTURE

The COVID-19 pressures for this service area are primarily income related, the most significant 
of which relates to car parks. For the first three to four months of 2020/21 virtually nil income 
was received from car parks as the national lockdown restrictions were in place. Since then there 
has been some lifting of restrictions, but based on the most recent data, the car park usage and 
income is still at less than 50% of what we would normally expect. This is resulting in a forecast 
loss of around £3.4m on car parking.  As discussed in the grant section later in this appendix, 
grant can be claimed against this loss, but the loss is only partially recoverable.

In addition to the lost income on car parking, this area is also forecasting lost income from the 
bus station as a result of reduced departure fees; reduced income from the hire of the Guildhall; 
reduced income from the market due to both enforced closure, and subsequent reduced usage; 
and also reduced rental income from commercial tenants – the council has a modest commercial 
property portfolio, primarily to support regeneration and the local economy, however the income 
generated is used to support services.

11



Appendix 1 – COVID-19 Costs, Pressures and Grants

3.  CUSTOMERS & COMMUNITIES
This service area has responsibilities for parks and public spaces and has seen material costs 
in securing children’s play areas and supporting social distancing, as well as direct support to 
the community. As the Government starts to ease restrictions, new requirements and proposals 
are coming forward that are likely to see further cost pressures around public spaces and 
facilities.

This service is also experiencing a reduction in income through lower licensing activity, and to a 
lesser extent, from the reduced use of the Museum Service. As discussed in the grant section 
later in this appendix, grant can be claimed against this loss, but the loss is only partially 
recoverable.

4. PLANNING

As a result of the restrictions in place, large new developments are not coming forward, resulting 
in a reduction in Development Control income from those applications.  However, small scale 
and householder developments are continuing to be submitted, and the return to work on a 
number of existing building sites has seen a significant increase in the number of discharge of 
condition and Building Regulations applications needing to be processed. The net impact on 
overall budgets is likely to be in the order of a £0.300m pressure.  Land searches volumes have 
seen some volume changes, resulting in a loss of income in this area too. As discussed in the 
grant section later in this appendix, grant can be claimed against this loss, but the loss is only 
partially recoverable.

5. CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

The distribution of over £36m to local businesses of BEIS Grants is very welcome to assist with 
the local economy, along with the Business Rates reliefs being changed after bills were issued 
for 2020/21, providing over £34m of Business Rate Relief to the Retail, Hospitality, Leisure sector 
and Small Business Rates Relief. However, there is cost to administering both of these schemes, 
along with rebilling over 8,500 recipients of the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (CTRS). Some 
additional ‘administrative funding’ has been provided by Government, however, the funding 
provided is less than the costs incurred.

As the pandemic struck at the end of March, it will be considered to have had a detrimental 
impact on asset valuations and other investments which had been valued prior to the pandemic 
as part of the financial year end routine, there is likely to be cost to revisit those items and the 
impact on 2020/21, with a probable increase in audit fees of around £0.300m for these impacts 
and the grant processes.

As a result of the pandemic the Council, along with other organisations, has looked to get its 
staff to work from home where this was practical and still allows service delivery. This has led to 
an increase in ICT costs for acquiring additional ICT equipment and mobile phones to enable 
core key services to function whilst alternative solutions were developed and implemented. The 
Council has also had to acquire commercial versions of telephone and video conferencing, the 
latter and the additional volume working ‘off site’ also required an upgrade to the Council’s IT 
infrastructure and bandwidth. The costs of IT, telephony and conference facilities is currently 
estimated to be £0.075m, but these costs may increase further as working from home looks to 
continue through much of the winter.

12



Appendix 1 – COVID-19 Costs, Pressures and Grants

6. CHIEF EXECUTIVE AREA

Some additional grants have been paid to local groups to provide support to residents during 
the COVID-19 pandemic, both directly and through additional funds being distributed by 
Councillors. This has a cost of over £0.100m.

7. CORPORATE COSTS

Challenges around cashflow, and low interest rates as a result of the economic impact of the 
pandemic have also seen a reductions in interest earned on deposits and the need to borrow to 
cover cashflow – the impact of this is likely to be a budget pressure of around £0.200m.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

8. COVID-19 EMERGENCY FUNDING FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT

The Council has received four tranches of this grant from government coming to a total of 
£4.023m. This grant is for non-specific support to local authorities as a result of the pandemic. 
This will be used to offset some of the cost pressures described in the sections above.

9. SALES, FEES AND CHARGES (SFC) GRANT

This grant is being made available from central government to support local authorities for lost 
income as a result of COVID-19. This does not cover all losses of income, but only those that 
meet specific criteria. Losses of income that the Council  has incurred that are not covered by 
this grant include the loss of property rental income, and also the loss of treasury investment 
income.

Where income losses do meet the criteria, then the Council can apply for this grant, However, it 
is not the full amount of lost income that can be recovered. For eligible lost income, the first 5% 
of losses cannot be claimed, and after that only 75% of losses will be recovered through the 
grant.

The Council has submitted its first claim under this grant and current estimates are that for the 
whole year, the Council may be able to claim approximately £2.4m of grant through this scheme 
– the majority of this will be in relation to car parks (approximately £1.9m).

10. GOVERNMENT ADMINISTERED GRANTS

The Council has received funding from the Department of Business Economy, Investment and 
Strategy (BEIS) to distribute to specific business within the Retail Hospitality Leisure (RHL) 
Sector and businesses in receipt of Small Business Rate Relief (SBRR). The Council received 
£37.374m of funds, of which it is expected that grants under Scheme One will require £34.550m. 
Under the new Scheme Two – Discretionary Scheme, the Council has been allocated £1.727m 
which will be drawn from the initial cash provided of £37.374m.

The Council has also received £1.861m to fund the Govt initiative to reduce all residual Council 
Tax bills for those in receipt of locally funded Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS), by £150 
at any point during 2020/21.

13



Appendix 1 – COVID-19 Costs, Pressures and Grants

11. ALL COVID-19 GRANTS

There follows two lists of grants that NBC has received in relation to COVID-19. The first is for 
schemes that central government specify how they should be used. The second is for grants 
that NBC has more freedom to apply.

Government directed schemes - in general central government dictates how these 
schemes work, and fund the scheme appropriately. Generally expected to have a net 
nil impact on NBC's monitoring as the cost and grant should broadly net to nil.
  
Government directed COVID19 Grants Value
NNDR rate reliefs for retail, leisure and hospitality and nursery’s £30,441,542
Business Support Grant Fund - grants to businesses in the retail, 
hospitality and leisure sectors £37,374,000

Hardship Fund - additional council tax support for those eligible for 
CTRS £1,861,318

Business Improvement Districts £35,646
Test and Trace Support Payments - to support those that are told to 
self-isolate and cannot work as a result £201,117

TOTAL £69,913,623
  
Grants that directly support additional NBC pressures as a result of COVID. These 
grants are included in the regular budget monitoring reports.
  
NBC support COVID19 Grants Value
Covid-19 Emergency Funding for Local Government (tranche one) £120,318
Covid-19 Emergency Funding for Local Government (tranche two) £2,239,849
Covid-19 Emergency Funding for Local Government (tranche three) £437,160
Covid-19 Emergency Funding for Local Government (tranche four) £1,225,563
Rough Sleepers Fund £21,000
Reopening High Streets Safety Fund £199,987
Rough Sleeping Grant reallocation of funds £63,333
Business Support Grant Admin Costs Grant £170,000
Local Authority Compliance and Enforcement Grant £124,352
Sales Fees and Charges Grant - to compensate for lost income as a 
result of COVID. The value of this grant is only currently an estimate, 
and will change depending on the income lost over the remainder of 
the year

£2,450,310

Next Steps Accommodation Programme (NSAP) £607,400
Next Steps Accommodation Programme (NSAP) - NBC HMO's Part A £590,000
TOTAL £8,249,272

14


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Finance Monitoring to 30 September 2020

